OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

19 March 2020
7.00 pm
Town Hall, Watford

Contact
Ishbel Morren
democraticservices@watford.gov.uk
01923 278375
For information about attending meetings please visit the council’s website.

Publication date: 11 March 2020

Committee Membership
Councillor A Grimston (Chair)
Councillor J Dhindsa (Vice-Chair)
Councillors D Allen-Williamson, R Martins, B Mauthoor, M Parker, G Saffery, J Stiff and
M Turmaine

Agenda
Part A - Open to the Public
1.

Apologies for Absence/Committee Membership

2.

Disclosure of interests (if any)

3.

Minutes
The minutes of the meeting held on 27 February 2020 to be submitted and signed.

4.

Other scrutiny meetings
The following scrutiny committees and task groups have met since the last
meeting of Overview and Scrutiny Committee:
 Finance Scrutiny Committee on 11 March

5.

Call-in
To consider any executive decisions which have been called in by the requisite
number of councillors.

6.

Community Safety Partnership (Pages 4 - 14)
Presentation of the Community Safety Co-ordinator

7.

Health Services for the Deaf Task Group - final report (Pages 15 - 28)
Report of the Democratic Services Officer and Health Services for the Deaf Task
Group
The report presents the Health Services for the Deaf Task Group’s final report.

8.

Executive Decision Progress Report (Pages 29 - 38)
The Scrutiny Committee is asked to review the latest edition of the Executive
Decision Progress Report and consider whether any further information is
required.

9.

Hertfordshire County Council's Health Scrutiny Committee
Councillor Grimston, the Council’s appointed representative to the County
Council’s Health Scrutiny Committee to provide an update.

10.

Work Programme (Pages 39 - 43)
The scrutiny committee is asked to review the 2019/20 work programme and
consider areas councillors may wish to scrutinise in 2020/21.

11.

Dates of Next Meetings



Thursday 18 June
Thursday 23 July

Agenda Item 6

Page 4

Oversight and scrutiny of the
Community Safety
Partnership.

Page 5

What were last year’s priorities?
What was achieved?
What was a challenge?
What are this year’s priorities and why?

Community Safety Partnership
Oversight and scrutiny

PREVENT

MODERN
DAY SLAVERY
& HUMAN
TRAFFICKING

ROUGH
SLEEPERS

COUNTER
TERRORSIM

HATE
CRIME

COMMUNITY
TRIGGER

CSE

MISPA

LEGAL
FRAMEWORK

Page 6

HOARDING

SAFEGUARDING
ADULTS &
CHILDREN

DOMESTIC
ABUSE

CUCKOOING

ASB, CRIME AND
DISORDER

Community Safety Partnership
Members Briefing

SERIOUS
YOUTH
CRIME

Agreeing the priorities

Page 7

• The 2020 strategic assessment identified no
high risk concerns. Therefore we risk rated the
crime types by impact on the town.
• We reduced threat rating to the town by
volume or footfall numbers alone.
• The chief inspector gave his specific risks.
• The CSP was asked to identify where it saw
risk.
Community Safety Partnership
Oversight and Scrutiny

SOCIAL
HOUSING
PROVIDERS

TRADING
STANDARDS

VOLENTEER
AND
COMMUNITY
GROUPS

POLICE

YOUTH
CONNECTIONS

HEALTH
(WATFORD
GENERAL)

VEOLIA

Page 8

FIRE &
RESCUE
SERVICE

NEW HOPE
TRUST
BID
WBC
PROBATION

Community Safety Partnership
Oversight and scrutiny

COMMUNITY
MENTAL
HEALTH TEAM

Agreeing the priorities

Page 9

• The partnership responses were very varied.
• However a clear shared experience soon came
though the data as almost all the responses at
some time mentioned:
• Rough sleeping, its impact
• Drug trafficking
• Exploitation.
Community Safety Partnership
Oversight and Scrutiny

Priorities for 2020 2021

Page 10

• Serious Youth violence, links to:
• Drugs trafficking, organised crime,
CE,CSE,VAP. Cuckooing, ASB, environmental /
nuisance / personal.
• Management of the rough sleeper cohort
trafficking, Cuckooing, ASB, theft from vehicle.
• Theft from Vehicle
• Organised crime groups, rough sleeper cohort.

Priorities for 2020 2021

Page 11

As part of the serious youth violence strategy we will:
Continue to identify youths at risk of exploitation
Disrupt and deter County lines
Promote work between schools and the business
community to target harden and deter crime
• Work to strengthen the Youth Action Panels’
interventions.
•
•
•
•

Community Safety Partnership
Oversight and Scrutiny

Priorities for 2020 2021

Page 12

• Manage the impact of the rough sleeper
cohort by:
• The continued multi agency detailed mapping
of individuals within the town
• Joint support and enforcement action
• Targeting of criminality
• Protection of those vulnerable to exploitation
• Improved communication strategy .
Community Safety Partnership
Oversight and Scrutiny

Priorities for 2020 2021

Page 13

•
•
•
•
•

Tackle theft from vehicle by:
Target hardening locations
Proactive police patrol in hotspots
Awareness training for CEO
Continued ‘make it safe’ repeat
communications and awareness.

Community Safety Partnership
Oversight and Scrutiny

Questions?

Page 14

Agenda Item 7
Part A
Report to:

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of meeting:

Thursday, 19 March 2020

Report author:

Democratic Services Officer

Title:

Health Services for the Deaf Task Group - final report

1.0

Summary

1.1

This report provides Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the final report and
recommendations of the Health Services for the Deaf Task Group. The full report is
attached as Appendix 1.

1.2

Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to review the report prior to being
forwarded to Hertfordshire County Council’s Health Scrutiny Committee.

2.0

Risks

2.1

No direct risks to the council have been identified as a result of the task group’s
recommendations.

3.0

Recommendations

3.1

that the final report and recommendations of the Health Services for the Deaf Task
Group be agreed and forwarded to Hertfordshire County Council’s Health Scrutiny
Committee.
Further information:
Jodie Kloss
jodie.kloss@watford.gov.uk
Tel: 01923 278376
Report approved by: Group Head of Democracy and Governance

4.0

Detailed proposal

4.1

At its meeting on 28 November 2019, a scrutiny proposal was presented to the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee by Councillor Karen Collett. The proposal
followed her meeting with Watford Deaf Club where a number of issues were raised
in relation to the accessibility of health services for those who are profoundly deaf
or with severe hearing loss.

Page 15

4.2

At that meeting, the membership of the task group was agreed. The following
councillors were appointed:
Councillor Glen Saffery
Councillor Steve Bolton
Councillor Aga Dychton
Councillor Amanda Grimston
Councillor Richard Wenham

Chair, Councillor for Woodside Ward
Councillor for Central Ward
Councillor for Central Ward
Councillor for Meriden Ward
Councillor for Woodside Ward

4.3

The task group met on two occasions. At the first meeting, representatives of
Watford Deaf Club attended to share their experiences of accessing health services.
Following this, an evidence day was held with representatives of local health
services.

4.4

In recognition that Watford Borough Council is not the local health authority, it is
suggested that the task group’s report be forwarded to Hertfordshire County
Council’s Health Scrutiny Committee with a recommendation that the issue be
taken up. Overview and Scrutiny Committee is therefore asked to review the final
report and recommend it for further consideration.

5.0

Implications

5.1

Financial

5.1.1 The Shared Director of Finance comments that there are no financial implications in
this report.
5.2

Legal Issues (Monitoring Officer)

5.2.1 The Group Head of Democracy and Governance comments that there are no legal
implications in this report.
5.3

Equalities, Human Rights and Data Protection

5.3.1 Those who are profoundly deaf and use British Sign Language are likely to be
considered to have a disability under the Equality Act 2010. The recommendations
in this report are designed to help ensure that residents who are deaf are able to
access health services on the same basis as those without hearing loss.
Appendices
 Appendix 1 – Health Services for the Deaf Task Group report

Page 16

Background papers
There are no specific background papers for this report. All background information used
during the task group’s work is referenced in the final report.

Page 17

Health Services for the Deaf
Task Group

March 2020

Draft 1

Page 18

Contents

Page

Task Group members and witnesses

3

Proposed recommendations

4

Background to the task group

5

Overview of the task group’s work

6

Recommendations and comments

7

Bibliography/background papers
Appendix
1. Task group proposal

2

Page 19

Task group members
Councillor Glen Saffery
Councillor Steve Bolton
Councillor Aga Dychton
Councillor Amanda Grimston
Councillor Richard Wenham

Chair, Councillor for Woodside Ward
Councillor for Central Ward
Councillor for Central Ward
Councillor for Meriden Ward
Councillor for Woodside Ward

Officer support
Jodie Kloss
Ishbel Morren

Democratic Services Officer
Senior Democratic Services Officer

Witnesses
Representatives from Watford Deaf Club
Sharon Alderman, Herts Valleys Clinical Commissioning Group
Sarah Ayub, Herts Valleys Clinical Commissioning Group
Amanda Barfot, Herts Valleys Clinical Commissioning Group
Aparna Garg, Herts Valleys Clinical Commissioning Group
Pamela Shepherd, Herts Valleys Clinical Commissioning Group
Elaine Bond, Audiology Manager, West Hertfordshire Hospitals NHS Trust
Phil Linnegar, Chief Executive, Hertfordshire Hearing Advisory Service

3

Page 20

Proposed recommendations to present to Overview and Scrutiny Committee

1. This report should be forwarded to Hertfordshire County Council’s Health
Scrutiny Committee with a recommendation that it undertakes a review of the
issues raised for deaf people accessing health services.
2. Ongoing contact should be encouraged between Watford Deaf Club and the
local clinical commissioning group (CCG). Representatives from the deaf
community should be invited to join appropriate patient forums.
3. The CCG should continue to encourage the sharing of best practice, in terms
of providing accessible services, amongst GP practices.
4. The CCG should encourage all GP surgeries to provide a generic email address
or text messaging service that patients can use to contact the surgery.
5. A British Sign Language (BSL) resource with basic signs to be made available in
all GP surgeries, hospital medical departments and ambulances to assist staff
in communicating with deaf patients should no signer or interpreter be
present. The CCG and West Hertfordshire Hospitals NHS Trust (WHHT) to work
with Hertfordshire Hearing Advisory Service on this resource.
6. WHHT should consider providing a way for patients to consent to their
accessibility needs being visibly flagged on their notes and to choose their
preferred means of communication assistance.
7. WHHT should consider maintaining a performance measure of the number of
appointments missed due to no BSL interpreter having been booked, if this
data is not already available.
8. When the current interpreting contract is up for renewal, WHHT to be
encouraged to consider digital interpreting services.
9. WHHT to consider introducing a trust-wide deaf awareness training module
for all staff in direct contact with patients.
10. WHHT should consider adding ‘welcome’ in a written representation of BSL to
the signage outside the main entrance to Watford General Hospital.

4

Page 21

Background to the task group
Over 11 million people in the UK live with some degree of hearing loss. Of these,
about 750,000 of these people are severely or profoundly deaf. A further 450,000
people cannot hear well enough to use a voice telephone. This level of hearing loss
has a significant impact on people’s health. Deaf people are more likely to have poor
mental health; up to 50% of deaf people, compared to 25% of the general
population. In addition, deaf people who have high blood pressure are three times
more likely not to have it under control than the wider population.
British Sign Language is used by 151,000 people in the United Kingdom and has the
highest number of monolingual users of any indigenous minority language in the UK.
It is estimated that it is the preferred language of approximately 100,000 people.
Although Watford Borough Council does not have a formal remit in this area, scrutiny
has an important role to play in highlighting the concerns of local residents.
At its meeting on 28 November 2019, a scrutiny proposal was presented to the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee by Councillor Karen Collett. The proposal followed
her meeting with Watford Deaf Club where a number of issues were raised in
relation to the accessibility of health services for those who are profoundly deaf or
with severe hearing loss. The concerns raised included communication facilities, staff
training and delays in their treatment.

5

Page 22

Overview of the task group’s programme of work
The task group had an initial meeting with representatives of Watford Deaf Club, as
well as a local interpreter who undertook health work. The purpose of this meeting
was to provide an overview of their experiences and concerns in relation to accessing
local health services. This meeting was signed by a registered BSL interpreter.
The attendees shared their personal experiences of accessing health services. The
issues raised related to ensuring the attendance of a BSL interpreter, how effectively
health staff communicated with deaf patients, accessibility of organising health
appointments and the ensuing lack of independence for deaf people and trust in the
health services.
Based on this background, and the key questions raised in the scrutiny proposal, the
task group agreed the invitees for the evidence day to discuss the issues raised with
health professionals.
The task group held an evidence day with representatives of local health services
present.
The task group met on two occasions. Additional research work was carried out by
Democratic Services to inform the task group’s work and to produce this report.
A list of the witnesses who provided evidence to the task group is listed on page 3
and a bibliography is provided at the end of this report.

6

Page 23

Recommendations and comments
1. This report should be forwarded to Hertfordshire County Council’s Health
Scrutiny Committee with a recommendation that it undertakes a review of
the issues raised for deaf people accessing health services.
Throughout this review, the task group was mindful that Watford Borough
Council is not the local health authority. The scrutiny function at the council
has the right, however, to scrutinise services which affect local residents. The
role of Watford Borough Council in this regard is strategic; bringing the
different services together and highlighting the concerns of residents.
In order to ensure that ongoing progress is made on this issue, members
would recommend that Hertfordshire County Council’s Health Scrutiny
Committee undertakes a further investigation. The council’s current
representative on this committee, Councillor Amanda Grimston, has been a
part of this task group.
2. Ongoing contact should be encouraged between Watford Deaf Club and the
local clinical commissioning group (CCG). Representatives from the deaf
community should be invited to join appropriate patient forums.
The task group was concerned with the reports that had been made by
members of the deaf community about the experiences they had had in
accessing health services. Many of the issues are due to a lack of
understanding and some require only simple changes in policy and practice.
The deaf community feels that they have been forgotten and the task group
provided them with an opportunity to raise issues that had been ongoing for
some time. Councillors were pleased that the CCG is also keen to increase the
representation of deaf patients on the patient groups that provide feedback
on health services. Representatives of the CCG are now in touch with Watford
Deaf Club and the task group hopes that this will prove to be a fruitful
outcome of the review so that the deaf community has an ongoing dialogue
with health commissioners.
3. The CCG should continue to encourage the sharing of best practice, in terms
of providing accessible services, amongst GP practices.
The nature of how primary care is organised means that each GP surgery will
cater for patient needs in different ways. This can bring benefits and potential
issues for groups like the deaf community who have specific needs. As the
commissioning body, the CCG maintains oversight of the services and brings
7

Page 24

groups together to discuss ideas and best practice. The CCG runs a number of
forums for GPs and practice managers which provide the opportunity to
discuss how to ensure the deaf community receives the same standard of care
and service as the rest of the population.
There are a number of issues which were raised by the witnesses which some
GP practices manage better than others. These include:
 How to provide accessible means for all patients to contact surgeries if
they are unable to use the telephone
 How to ensure patients can request the most appropriate
communication assistance for them
 How to ensure patients who have a BSL interpreter, or an associate
signing for them, are properly accommodated at appointments,
including allocating an appropriate length of time
 How to ensure all patients are aware when they are being called for an
appointment
 Appropriate deaf awareness training for all patient-facing staff.
4. The CCG should encourage all GP surgeries to provide a generic email
address or text messaging service that patients can use to contact the
surgery.
One issue that was reported to the task group was that the primary way that
patients generally contact their GP surgery was via telephone; this is not an
option for the deaf community. Witnesses described having to go to the
surgeries when they opened in the morning to be able to secure an
appointment. This is time-consuming and does not afford them the ability to
make appointments remotely like others can. Although some surgeries have a
text messaging service, these are usually for appointment reminders and are
not able to receive text messages from patients.
The task group is therefore recommending that consideration be given to
encouraging surgeries to have a text messaging service or telephone that
patients can message. Alternatively, if the technology proves to be an
obstacle, a generic email address which would allow patients to contact the
practice directly would be welcome.
5. A British Sign Language (BSL) resource with basic signs to be made available
in all GP surgeries, hospital medical departments and ambulances to assist
staff in communicating with deaf patients should no signer or interpreter be
present. The CCG and West Hertfordshire Hospitals NHS Trust (WHHT) to
work with Hertfordshire Hearing Advisory Service on this resource.

8

Page 25

Ideally, deaf patients attending health services would have the
communication assistance, such as an interpreter, that they require
straightaway. There will, however, be circumstances such as emergencies or if
an interpreter is delayed that interim communication measures will be
required. Witnesses reported that the use of pen and paper is not preferred
for many in the deaf community. The task group noted that for the profoundly
deaf, English is often their second language and their written proficiency could
be varied.
It was suggested that a resource should be made available through the clinical
commissioning group and the hospital trust to all departments. This could
take the form of a booklet or a set of cards showing basic BSL signs to
communicate the messages that could be required in medical settings. The
task group suggests that the CCG and WHHT should work with Hertfordshire
Hearing Advisory Service to determine if such a resource is available and/or to
develop something that would be appropriate for their settings.
6. WHHT should consider providing a way for patients to consent to their
accessibility needs being visibly flagged on their notes and to choose their
preferred means of communication assistance.
One of the key issues experienced by the deaf community was that medical
staff were not necessarily aware of their sensory needs and/or their need for
an interpreter to be present. Part of the problem appears to be that the main
patient management computer system in place at the trust does not have the
facility to visibly flag these requirements. The operation of different computer
systems across hospital departments can be problematic in ensuring that the
needs of deaf patients are consistently met.
In addition, notes are also often held in hard copy. It was suggested that it
would be in breach of patient confidentiality to have a marker on the front of
the notes denoting deafness. Witnesses advised that it was commonplace for
dementia patients to have the image of a forget-me-not on their notes to
ensure medical staff are aware of their condition. The task group felt that
patients should be given the option to consent to this information to being
visible on their notes. Furthermore, this consent process should also provide
patients the opportunity to specify their preferred communication assistance.
Some deaf people need an interpreter while others prefer to lip-read or use
pen and paper.
7. WHHT should consider maintaining a performance measure of the number
of appointments missed due to no BSL interpreter having been booked, if
this data is not already available.
9

Page 26

Representatives from the deaf community gave the task group examples of
having to rearrange appointments because, on arrival, they discovered that no
interpreter had been booked. Missed and cancelled appointments are not
only an inconvenience to patients but also represent a cost to the hospital
trust. Minimising these occurrences would benefit all parties involved. Once
this data is available, it can be monitored by the trust’s management and
actions taken to reduce these occurrences.
It was also not clear to patients if an interpreter had been booked by the trust
when they are notified of an appointment. Better communication and
visibility of patients’ sensory needs would help to prevent these occurrences,
as per recommendation 6 above.
8. When the current interpreting contract is up for renewal, WHHT to be
encouraged to consider digital interpreting services.
It is vital that deaf patients who require an interpreter be provided with this
assistance as soon as possible to ensure they are able to communicate with
medical staff and provide informed consent where required. There is high
demand for interpreting services and, especially in emergency situations,
there can often be a delay in the interpreter arriving. It is understood that the
hospital trust pays for travel costs and a minimum fee for interpreters which is
understandable.
Hertfordshire Hearing Advisory Service is advocating the adoption of more
digital solutions for interpreting services, including InterpreterNow. This is an
online service providing video BSL interpreting remotely. This type of service is
widely used elsewhere in the NHS and public sector. These can be cheaper
than face-to-face services as they are paid per minute and avoid minimum
hours and travel costs. The task group supports this proposal so that digital
solutions are also available alongside face-to-face services.
9. WHHT to consider introducing a trust-wide deaf awareness training module
for all staff in direct contact with patients.
The task group learnt that while pockets of training exist at WHHT on
communicating with the deaf, including for newly-qualified doctors and
receptionists, there does not appear to be any systematic trust-wide deaf
awareness training.
Introducing a course for all patient-facing staff would be of significant benefit
to all patients with a degree of hearing loss. Some of the issues experienced
10

Page 27

by deaf residents relate to a lack of understanding about how to communicate
with deaf people. Understanding the need to face the person, to speak clearly
and some basic BSL signs would ensure that deaf patients have an improved
level of service. This training would also ensure that staff are able to recognise
when a BSL interpreter was required and any training on the booking system
with PALS.
10. WHHT should consider adding ‘welcome’ in a written representation of BSL
to the signage outside the main entrance to Watford General Hospital.
Watford is a town where everyone should feel welcome and included. There
are two specialist units for deaf people in the area and the hospital therefore
has a large number of BSL speakers who visit the site. The main entrance to
the hospital includes signage which says ‘welcome’ in a number of different
languages but does not currently include British Sign Language. The task group
received a suggestion that it would be a gesture of inclusivity to the deaf
community if ‘welcome’ could be added to this signage in a visual
representation of BSL.

The task group would like to thank all their witnesses who gave their time to assist
with this review.

Bibliography/background papers
Information from the West Herts Hospitals NHS Trust Patient Advice and Liaison
Service
NHS Accessible Information Standard- https://www.england.nhs.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2017/10/accessible-info-standard-overview-2017-18.pdf
London Assembly – Access to health services for deaf people https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/london_assembly_health_committee
_-_access_to_health_services_for_deaf_people_-_june_2015_-_updated.pdf
SignHealth – Sick of it - http://www.signhealth.org.uk/health-information/sick-of-itreport/sick-of-it-in-english/
The minutes of the two meetings of this task group are available here:
https://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=424

11

Page 28

Executive Decision Progress Report
Page 29

May 2019 – May 2020

Ishbel Morren
Senior Democratic Services Officer

Telephone:

01923 278375

Email:

democraticservices@watford.gov.uk

Agenda Item 8

Contact Officer:

January 2020

All officer decisions are available on the Officer Decision Register or on the full Decision Register. Only key decisions are shown below.
Further information about forthcoming decisions is available online.
Decision

Department

Decision
maker

Date Key Decision Status
to be taken (as
shown on the
Notice of
Executive
Decisions)

Sports and Physical Activity
Framework

Community and
Environmental
Services

Cabinet

February 2019

Page 30

Watford Riverwell

Place Shaping
and Corporate
Performance

Cabinet

July 2019

Originally due to be considered by Cabinet at
its meeting in February, considered at the
meeting on 4 July 2019.
Not called in.
Part B – paragraph 3 of Part 1 Schedule 12A of
the Local Government Act 1972, as it contains
commercially sensitive information.
Considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 4 July
2019.
Not called in.

January 2020

Decision

Department

Decision
maker

Date Key Decision Status
to be taken (as
shown on the
Notice of
Executive
Decisions)

Award of Transport App
contract

Service
Transformation

Mayor

July 2019

Page 31

Management contract for
council owned hostels and
self-contained properties
used as temporary
accommodation

Place Shaping
and Corporate
Performance

Head of Housing August 2009

Community Protection
Notice – fine levels

Community and
Environmental
Services

Cabinet

The Chair of Overview and Scrutiny
Committee agreed that the decision could be
dealt with in accordance with Access to
Information Procedure Rule 16 of the
Constitution, “Special Urgency”.
Mayor Taylor made the decision on 9 July
2019.
Considered by the Head of Housing on 8
August 2019.
Not called in.

September 2019

Considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 9
September 2019.
Not called in.

January 2020

Decision

Department

Decision
maker

Date Key Decision Status
to be taken (as
shown on the
Notice of
Executive
Decisions)

Demand Responsive
Transport

Place Shaping

Cabinet

September 2019

Part exempt – Paragraph 3 of Part 1 Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as
appendix contains commercially sensitive
financial information.
Considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 9
September 2019.

Page 32

Watford Market
Management Contract

Community and
Environmental
Services

Cabinet

September 2019

Not called in.
In accordance with the Access to Information
Procedure Rule 15, the Chair of Overview and
Scrutiny Committee was notified that the
decision was to be considered by Cabinet at its
meeting on 9 September 2019.
Part exempt – Paragraph 3 of Part 1 Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as
appendix contains commercially sensitive
financial information.
Not called in.

January 2020

Decision

Department

Decision
maker

Date Key Decision Status
to be taken (as
shown on the
Notice of
Executive
Decisions)

Bike Share scheme

Place Shaping

Cabinet

September 2019

Part exempt – Paragraph 3 of Part 1 Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as an
appendix contains commercially sensitive
financial information.

Page 33

Considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 9
September 2019.

Award of contract for the
council’s Business
Intelligence partner

Service
Transformation

Watford High Street (North)
and Cultural Hub Masterplan
Progress Report

Place Shaping

Group Head of
Transformation

Cabinet

September 2019

Not called in.
Approved by Group Head of Transformation
on 30 September 2019.

October 2019

Not called in.
Considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 7
October 2019.
Not called in.

January 2020

Decision

Department

Decision
maker

Date Key Decision Status
to be taken (as
shown on the
Notice of
Executive
Decisions)

Watford 2020: Transport and
Infrastructure Detailed
Design and Business Case

Service
Transformation
and Place
Shaping

Cabinet

October 2019

Part B – paragraph 2 of Part 1 Schedule 12A of
the Local Government Act 1972, as it contains
information which is likely to reveal the
identity of an individual.
Considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 7
October 2019.

Page 34

Cassiobury Footpath 30

Corporate
Cabinet
Strategy and
Communications

November 2019

Not called in.
Part exempt – Paragraph 3 of Part 1 Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as
appendix contains commercially sensitive
financial information.
Originally due to be considered by Cabinet at
its meeting in October, considered at the
meeting on 11 November 2019.
Not called in.

January 2020

Decision

Department

Decision
maker

Date Key Decision Status
to be taken (as
shown on the
Notice of
Executive
Decisions)

Print and Posts Contracts
Award

Service
Transformation

Cabinet

November 2019

Part B – paragraphs 2 and 3 of Part 1 Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as it
contains information which is likely to reveal
the identity of an individual and financial or
business affairs of bidders.

Page 35

Originally due to be considered by Cabinet at
its meeting in October, considered at the
meeting on 11 November 2019.

Statement of Community
Involvement

Woodside Masterplan
Update

Place Shaping
and Corporate
Performance

Cabinet

Community and
Environmental
Services

Cabinet

November 2019

November 2019

Not called in.
Considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 11
November 2019.
Not called in.
In accordance with the Access to Information
Procedure Rule 15, the Chair of Overview and
Scrutiny Committee was notified that the
decision was to be considered by Cabinet at its
meeting on 11 November 2019.
Not called in.

January 2020

Page 36

Decision

Department

Decision
maker

Date Key Decision Status
to be taken (as
shown on the
Notice of
Executive
Decisions)

Developer Contributions
Governance

Place Shaping
and Corporate
Performance

Cabinet

December 2019

Place Shaping
and Corporate
Performance

Cabinet

Hertfordshire Growth Board
Memorandum of
Understanding

Waste and Recycling contract Community and
variations
Environmental
Services

Cabinet

December 2019

January 2020

Considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 2
December 2019.
Not called in.
In accordance with the Access to Information
Procedure Rule 15, the Chair of Overview and
Scrutiny Committee was notified that the
decision was to be considered by Cabinet at its
meeting on 2 December 2019.
Not called in.
Originally due to be considered by Cabinet at
its meeting in November, considered at the
meeting on 6 January 2020.
Not called in.

January 2020

A Green Spaces Strategy for
Watford – mid-term report

An Allotment Strategy 202025

A Tree and Woodland
Strategy for Watford

Community and
Environmental
Services
Community and
Environmental
Services
Community and
Environmental
Services

Page 37

Sustainability Strategy Part 1: Community and
2020-23
Environmental
Services
Watford Borough Council
Corporate Plan 2020

Riverwell – Multi-storey car
park

Cabinet

Cabinet

Cabinet

Cabinet

Corporate
Cabinet
Strategy and
Communications
Place Shaping
and Corporate
Performance

Cabinet

March 2020

Considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 2
March.

March 2020

Not called in.
Considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 2
March.

March 2020

Not called in.
Considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 2
March.

March 2020

Not called in.
Considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 2
March.

March 2020

Not called in.
Considered by Cabinet at its meeting on 2
March.

June 2020

Not called in.
Part B – paragraph 3 of Part 1 Schedule 12A of
the Local Government Act 1972, as the
contract has not been awarded.
Originally due to be considered by Cabinet at
its meeting in September, deferred to the
meeting on 1 June 2020.

January 2020

Homelessness & Rough
Sleeping Strategy

Place Shaping
and Corporate
Performance

Cabinet

June 2020

Due to be considered by Cabinet at its
meeting on 1 June 2020.

Domestic Abuse Policy

Community and
Environmental
Services

Cabinet

June 2020

Originally due to be considered by Cabinet at
its meeting in September, deferred to the
meeting on 1 June 2020.

Safeguarding Policy

Community and
Environmental
Services

Cabinet

June 2020

Originally due to be considered by Cabinet at
its meeting in September, deferred to the
meeting on 1 June 2020.

Page 38
January 2020

Agenda Item 10
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Work Programme 2019/20

Thursday 20 June 2019 (published on 12 June)
Item

Lead officer/councillor

Call-in
Work programme

Senior Democratic Services
Officer

West Herts Hospitals NHS Trust – redevelopment
update

West Herts Hospital NHS Trust

Quarter 4 2018/19 Performance report

Group Head of Corporate
Strategy and Communications

Tuesday 23 July 2019 (published on 15 July)
Item

Lead officer/councillor

Minutes of other scrutiny committees and task groups
 Finance Scrutiny Committee 25/06/19
 Mental Health Task Group 18/06/19
Call-in
Task group 2 to be agreed – HQ Theatres (The
Colosseum)

Senior Democratic Services
Officer / Head of Leisure and
Environmental Services

Watford 2020 update

Watford 2020 Programme
Manager

Rough sleepers

Head of Housing

Statutory Guidance on Overview and Scrutiny in Local
and Combined Authorities – brief outline of some of
the key points set out in the new guidance

Senior Democratic Services
Officer

Page 39

Thursday 26 September 2019 (published on 18 September)
Item

Lead officer/councillor

Minutes of other scrutiny committees and task groups
 Mental Health Task Group 15/07/19
 Finance Scrutiny Committee 11/09/19
Call-in
Watford Community Housing Task Group –
recommendations update
 To review the latest information from Watford
Community Housing

Senior Democratic Services
Officer / Watford Community
Housing

End of Year report – Small Grants Fund

Head of Leisure and
Environmental Services

Quarter 1 2019/20 Key Performance Indicators

Group Head of Corporate
Strategy and Communications

Thursday 24 October 2019 (published on 16 October)
Item

Lead officer/councillor

Minutes of other scrutiny committees and task groups
 Mental Health Task Group 17/09/19
 Watford Colosseum Task Group 18/09/19
Call-in
Mental Health Task Group – Final report

Senior Democratic Services
Officer

Watford 2020 update

Watford 2020 Programme
Manager

End of year report on the Voluntary Sector
Commissioning Framework and review of the 2016-19
commissioning framework

Head of Leisure and
Environmental Services

Page 40

Thursday 28 November 2019 (published on 20 November)
Item

Lead officer/councillor

Minutes of other scrutiny committees and task groups
 Watford Colosseum Task Group 14 October
2019
Call-in
End of year 8 Watford Colosseum with HQ Theatres

Head of Leisure and
Environmental Services

End of year 1 new leisure contract with SLM

Head of Leisure and
Environmental Services

Quarter 2 2019/20 Key Performance Indicators

Group Head of Corporate
Strategy and Communications

Thursday 19 December 2019 (published on 11 December)
Item

Lead officer/councillor

Minutes of other scrutiny committees and task groups
 Finance Scrutiny Committee 26/11/19
Call-in
End of year 6 Waste, Streets and Parks contract with
Veolia – particular reference to be given to improved
street and environmental cleanliness, levels of litter,
detritus, graffiti and fly posting

Head of Leisure and
Environmental Services

Watford Colosseum Task Group – Final report

Senior Democratic Services
Officer

Thursday 23 January 2020 (published on 15 January)
Item

Lead officer/councillor

Call-in

Page 41

Thursday 6 February 2020 (published on 29 January)
Item

Lead officer/councillor

Minutes of other scrutiny committees and task groups
 Finance Scrutiny Committee 14/01/20
 Health Services for Deaf People Task Group
21/01/20
Call-in
Quarter 3 2019/20 Key Performance Indicators

Group Head of Corporate
Strategy and Communications

Revenues and Benefits update

Head of Revenues and Benefits

Thursday 27 February 2020 (published on 19 February)
Item

Lead officer/councillor

Minutes of other scrutiny committees and task groups
 Health Services for Deaf People Task Group
25/2/20
Call-in
Watford 2020 update

Watford 2020 Programme
Manager and Group Head of
Transformation

Watford Colosseum December 2019 update

Group Head of Transformation

Mental Health Task Group – Executive response

Senior Democratic Services
Officer

Page 42

Thursday 19 March 2020 (published on 11 March)
Item

Lead officer/councillor

Minutes of other scrutiny committees and task groups
 Finance Scrutiny Committee 11/03/20
Call-in
Community Safety Partnership – final update on
2019/20 plan and objectives for 2020/21

Community Safety Coordinator

Health Services for Deaf People Task Group – Final
report

Senior Democratic
Services Officer

New task group for 2020/21

Senior Democratic
Services Officer

Page 43

